Intermediate Algebra10e



Kaufmann / Schwitters

Symbols

=	Is	eq	ual	to
		~~		

- \neq Is not equal to
- \approx Is approximately equal to
- > Is greater than
- \geq Is greater than or equal to
- < Is less than
- \leq Is less than or equal to
- a < x < b a is less than x and x is less than b
 - $0.\overline{34}$ The repeating decimal 0.343434...
 - LCD Least common denominator
 - $\{a, b\}$ The set whose elements are a and b
- $\{x | x \ge 2\}$ The set of all x such that x is greater than or equal to 2
 - \emptyset Null set
 - $a \in B$ a is an element of set B
 - $a \notin B$ a is not an element of set B
 - $A \subseteq B$ Set A is a subset of set B
 - $A \not\subseteq B$ Set A is not a subset of set B
 - $A \cap B$ Set intersection
 - $A \cup B$ Set union
 - |x| The absolute value of x
 - b^n *n*th power of *b*
 - $\sqrt[n]{a}$ *n*th root of *a*
 - \sqrt{a} Principal square root of a
 - i Imaginary unit
 - a + bi Complex number
 - \pm Plus or minus
 - (a, b) Ordered pair: first component is a and second component is b

f, g, h, etc. Names of functions

- f(x) Functional value at x
- $f \circ g$ The composition of functions f and g
- f^{-1} The inverse of the function f
- $\log_b x$ Logarithm, to the base b, of x
- $\ln x$ Natural logarithm (base *e*)
- $\log x$ Common logarithm (base 10)
 - *n*! *n* factorial



Copyright 2014 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s). Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.

Copyright 2014 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s). Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.

Intermediate Algebra

TENTH EDITION



Copyright 2014 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s). Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.

Intermediate Algebra

TENTH EDITION



Jerome E. Kaufmann Karen L. Schwitters

Seminole State College of Florida



Australia • Brazil • Mexico • Singapore • United Kingdom • United States

Copyright 2014 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s). itorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.

This is an electronic version of the print textbook. Due to electronic rights restrictions, some third party content may be suppressed. Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. The publisher reserves the right to remove content from this title at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it. For valuable information on pricing, previous editions, changes to current editions, and alternate formats, please visit <u>www.cengage.com/highered</u> to search by ISBN#, author, title, or keyword for materials in your areas of interest.



Intermediate Algebra, Tenth Edition Jerome E. Kaufmann and Karen L. Schwitters

General Manager, Developmental Studies: Gareth Hancock

Product Manager: Marc Bove

Content Developer: Stefanie Beeck

Associate Content Developer: Cynthia Ashton

Product Assistant: Kathryn Clark

Media Developer: Guanglei Zhang

Associate Media Developer: Bryon Spencer

Brand Manager: Gordon Lee

Market Development Manager: Mark Linton

Content Project Manager: Cheryll Linthicum

Art Director: Vernon Boes

Manufacturing Planner: Becky Cross

Rights Acquisitions Specialist: Tom McDonough

Production and Composition Service: Graphic World Inc.

Photo Researcher: PreMediaGlobal

Text Researcher: PreMediaGlobal

Copy Editor: Graphic World Inc.

Illustrators: Network Graphics; Graphic World Inc.

Text Designer: Diane Beasley

Cover Designer: Irene Morris

Cover Image: antishock/fotolia

© 2015, 2011, 2006 Cengage Learning

WCN: 02-200-203

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. No part of this work covered by the copyright herein may be reproduced, transmitted, stored, or used in any form or by any means, graphic, electronic, or mechanical, including but not limited to photocopying, recording, scanning, digitizing, taping, Web distribution, information networks, or information storage and retrieval systems, except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act, without the prior written permission of the publisher.

For product information and technology assistance, contact us at Cengage Learning Customer & Sales Support, 1-800-354-9706.

For permission to use material from this text or product, submit all requests online at **www.cengage.com/permissions**. Further permissions questions can be e-mailed to **permissionrequest@cengage.com**.

Library of Congress Control Number: 2013948488

Student Edition:

ISBN-13: 978-1-285-19572-8

ISBN-10: 1-285-19572-8

Cengage Learning

200 First Stamford Place, 4th Floor Stamford, CT 06902 USA

Cengage Learning is a leading provider of customized learning solutions with office locations around the globe, including Singapore, the United Kingdom, Australia, Mexico, Brazil, and Japan. Locate your local office at **www.cengage.com/global.**

Cengage Learning products are represented in Canada by Nelson Education, Ltd.

To learn more about Cengage Learning Solutions, visit **www.cengage.com**.

Purchase any of our products at your local college store or at our preferred online store **www.cengagebrain.com.**

Printed in the United States of America 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 17 16 15 14 13

Copyright 2014 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s). Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.

Contents

1 Basic Concepts and Properties 1

- 1.0 Review of Fractions 2
- 1.1 Sets, Real Numbers, and Numerical Expressions 13
- 1.2 Operations with Real Numbers 22
- 1.3 Properties of Real Numbers and the Use of Exponents 31
- 1.4 Algebraic Expressions 38

Chapter 1 Summary 48

Chapter 1 Review Problem Set 51

Chapter 1 Test 53

2 Equations, Inequalities, and Problem Solving 55

- 2.1 Solving First-Degree Equations 56
- 2.2 Equations Involving Fractional Forms 64
- 2.3 Equations Involving Decimals and Problem Solving 71
- 2.4 Formulas 79
- 2.5 Inequalities 89
- 2.6 More on Inequalities and Problem Solving 96
- 2.7 Equations and Inequalities Involving Absolute Value 105

Chapter 2 Summary 112

Chapter 2 Review Problem Set 118

Chapter 2 Test 120

Chapters 1 – 2 Cumulative Review Problem Set 121

3 Polynomials 123

- 3.1 Polynomials: Sums and Differences 124
- 3.2 Products and Quotients of Monomials 130
- 3.3 Multiplying Polynomials 136
- 3.4 Factoring: Greatest Common Factor and Common Binomial Factor 144
- 3.5 Factoring: Difference of Two Squares and Sum or Difference of Two Cubes 152
- 3.6 Factoring Trinomials 158

3.7 Equations and Problem Solving 166

Chapter 3 Summary 173

Chapter 3 Review Problem Set 179

Chapter 3 Test 181

4	Rational Expressions	183

- 4.1 Simplifying Rational Expressions 184
- 4.2 Multiplying and Dividing Rational Expressions 190
- 4.3 Adding and Subtracting Rational Expressions 195
- 4.4 More on Rational Expressions and Complex Fractions 202
- 4.5 Dividing Polynomials 211
- 4.6 Fractional Equations 217
- 4.7 More Fractional Equations and Applications 223

Chapter 4 Summary 232

Chapter 4 Review Problem Set 238

Chapter 4 Test 240

Chapters 1 – 4 Cumulative Review Problem Set 241

5 Exponents and Radicals 243

- 5.1 Using Integers as Exponents 244
- 5.2 Roots and Radicals 250
- 5.3 Combining Radicals and Simplifying Radicals That Contain Variables 260
- 5.4 Products and Quotients Involving Radicals 265
- 5.5 Equations Involving Radicals 271
- 5.6 Merging Exponents and Roots 276

5.7 Scientific Notation 281

Chapter 5 Summary 287

Chapter 5 Review Problem Set 292

Chapter 5 Test 294

6 Quadratic Equations and Inequalities 295

- 6.1 Complex Numbers 296
- 6.2 Quadratic Equations 303
- 6.3 Completing the Square 311
- 6.4 Quadratic Formula 315
- 6.5 More Quadratic Equations and Applications 323
- 6.6 Quadratic and Other Nonlinear Inequalities 331

Chapter 6 Summary 337

Chapter 6 Review Problem Set 342

Chapter 6 Test 344

Chapters 1 – 6 Cumulative Review Problem Set 345

7 Equations and Inequalities in Two Variables 347

- 7.1 Rectangular Coordinate System and Linear Equations 348
- 7.2 Linear Inequalities in Two Variables 361
- 7.3 Distance and Slope 365
- 7.4 Determining the Equation of a Line 375
- 7.5 Graphing Nonlinear Equations 386

Chapter 7 Summary 393

Chapter 7 Review Problem Set 399

Chapter 7 Test 402

8 Conic Sections 403

- 8.1 Graphing Parabolas 404
- 8.2 More Parabolas and Some Circles 412
- 8.3 Graphing Ellipses 419

8.4 Graphing Hyperbolas 423

Chapter 8 Summary 430

Chapter 8 Review Problem Set 433

Chapter 8 Test 435

Chapters 1 – 8 Cumulative Review Problem Set 436

9 Functions 439

- 9.1 Relations and Functions 440
- 9.2 Functions: Their Graphs and Applications 447
- 9.3 Graphing Made Easy via Transformations 460
- 9.4 Composition of Functions 469
- 9.5 Inverse Functions 475
- 9.6 Direct and Inverse Variations 482

Chapter 9 Summary 489

Chapter 9 Review Problem Set 499

Chapter 9 Test 501

10 Systems of Equations 503

- 10.1 Systems of Two Linear Equations and Linear Inequalities in Two Variables 504
- 10.2 Substitution Method 510
- 10.3 Elimination-by-Addition Method 515
- 10.4 Systems of Three Linear Equations in Three Variables 524
- 10.5 Systems Involving Nonlinear Equations 532

Chapter 10 Summary 537

Chapter 10 Review Problem Set 542

Chapter 10 Test 544

Chapters 1 – 10 Cumulative Review Problem Set 545

11 Exponential and Logarithmic Functions 549

- 11.1 Exponents and Exponential Functions 550
- 11.2 Applications of Exponential Functions 556
- 11.3 Logarithms 565
- 11.4 Logarithmic Functions 574

11.5 Exponential Equations, Logarithmic Equations, and Problem Solving 579

Chapter 11 Summary 588

Chapter 11 Review Problem Set 594

Chapter 11 Test 597

Appendix A Binomial Expansions 599 Answer Section 603

Index I-1

When preparing Intermediate Algebra, Tenth Edition, we wanted to preserve the features that made the previous editions successful and, at the same time, incorporate improvements suggested by reviewers.

This text was written for college students who need an algebra course that bridges the gap between elementary algebra and the more advanced courses in precalculus mathematics. It covers topics that are usually classified as intermediate algebra topics.

The basic concepts of intermediate algebra are presented in this text in a simple, straightforward way. Algebraic ideas are developed in a logical sequence and in an easy-to-read manner without excessive formalism. Concepts are developed through examples, reinforced through additional examples, and then applied in a variety of problem-solving situations.

There is a common thread that runs throughout the book:

- 1. Learn a skill
- 2. Practice the skill to help solve equations, and
- 3. Apply the skill to solve application problems

This thread influenced some of the decisions we made in preparing the text.

- When appropriate, problem sets contain an ample number of word problems. Approximately 450 word problems are scattered throughout the text. These problems deal with a variety of applications that show the connection between mathematics and its use in the real world.
- Many problem-solving suggestions are offered throughout the text, and there are special discussions on problem solving in several sections. And when different methods can be used to solve the same problem, those methods are presented for both word problems and other skill problems.
- Newly acquired skills are used as soon as possible to solve equations and inequalities, which, in turn, are used to solve word problems. Therefore, the concept of solving equations and inequalities is introduced early and reinforced throughout the text. The concepts of factoring, solving equations, and solving word problems are tied together in Chapter 3.

In approximately 500 worked-out examples, we demonstrate a wide variety of situations, but we leave some things for students to think about in the problem sets. We also use examples to guide students in organizing their work and to help them decide when they may try a shortcut. The progression from showing all steps to demonstrating a suggested shortcut format is gradual.

As recommended by the American Mathematical Association of Two-Year Colleges, many basic geometry concepts are integrated into a problem-solving setting. This book contains worked-out examples and problems that connect algebra, geometry, and real-world applications. Specific discussions of geometric concepts are contained in the following sections:

Section 2.2 Complementary and supplementary angles; the sum of the measurements of the angles of a triangle equals 180°

Section 2.4 Area and volume formulas

Section 3.4 The Pythagorean theorem

Section 6.2 More on the Pythagorean theorem, including work with isosceles right triangles and 30° - 60° right triangles

Content Changes New to This Edition

- Chapter 1 now has a section 0, which reviews fractions. Nearly all students coming into Intermediate Algebra need a review of fractions. Students can assess their current skills in operations with fractions by doing the problems in the Sets of Mastery problems in this section. There are four Sets of Mastery problems in the section. Each set of mastery problems is followed by explanations and examples for students that need remediation on those skills. At the end of the section, there is a problem set with 70 problems.
- Section 2.2 (Equations Involving Fractional Forms) covers solving equations that involve fractions. This section now includes a discussion about distinguishing between an equation and an expression because after learning this section students often misapply the multiplication property of equality to expressions. The Problem Set for the section contains a mixture of equations to solve and expressions to simplify.
- Section 5.2 (Roots and Radicals) material has been reorganized to clarify the presentation
 of the definitions of roots and their corresponding properties.
- In Chapter 10, the section on solving systems of equations by using matrices and the section on determinants have been removed from the text. The elimination-by-addition method for solving systems of equations has been changed to a more straightforward method.
- A focal point of every revision is the Problem Sets. Some users of the previous edition have suggested that the "very good" Problem Sets could be made even better by adding a few problems in different places. Based on these suggestions, some problems have been added to various problem sets. For example, in Section 10.3 (Elimination-by-Addition Method) many problems were changed to avoid so many fraction answers.

Additional Comments about Some of the Chapters

- Chapter 1 was written so that it can be covered quickly, or on an individual basis if necessary, by those who only need a brief review of some basic arithmetic and algebraic concepts.
- Chapter 2 presents an early introduction to the heart of the intermediate algebra course. Problem solving and the solving of equations and inequalities are introduced early so they can be used as unifying themes throughout the text.
- Chapter 6 is organized to give students the opportunity to learn, on a day-by-day basis, different factoring techniques for solving quadratic equations. The process of completing the square is treated as a viable equation-solving tool for certain types of quadratic equations. The emphasis on completing the square in this setting pays off in Chapter 8 when we graph parabolas, circles, ellipses, and hyperbolas. Section 6.5 offers some guidance as to when to use a particular technique for solving a quadratic equation.
- Chapter 8 was written on the premise that intermediate algebra students should be very familiar with straight lines, parabolas, and circles but have limited exposure to ellipses and hyperbolas.
- In Chapter 9 the definition of a function is built from the definition of a relation. After that, the chapter is devoted entirely to functions; our treatment of the topic does not jump back and forth between functions and relations that are not functions. This chapter includes some work with the composition of functions and the use of linear and quadratic functions in problem-solving situations. In this chapter, domains and ranges are expressed in both interval and set-builder notation. And in the student answer section at the back of the book, domains and ranges are written in both formats.

New Features

- 2.1 Solving First-Degree Equations 2.2 Equations Involving
- Fractional Forms **Equations Involving**
- Decimals and Problem Solving
- 2.4 Formulas
- 2.5 Inequalities
- 2.5 More on Inequalities and Problem Solving
- Equations and . nequalities Involving Absolute Value

Equations, Inequalities, and Problem Solving



Study Skill Tip

"The man who thinks he can and the man who thinks he can't are both right."

Class time is an intense study time. Start by being prepared physically and mentally for class. For the physical part, consider sitting in the area called the "golden triangle of success.¹ That area is a triangle formed by the front row of the classroom to the middle seat in the back row. This is where the instructor focuses his/her attention. When sitting in the golden triangle of success, you will be apt to pay more attention. and be less distracted.

To be mentally prepared for class and note taking, you should practice warming up before class begins. Warming up could involve reviewing the notes from the previ-ous class session, reviewing your homework, preparing questions to ask, trying a few of the unassigned problems, or previewing the section for the upcoming class session. These activities will get you ready to learn during the class session.

Students often wonder if they should be taking notes or just listening. The answer is somewhat different for each student, but every student's notes should contain ex-amples of problems, explanations to accompany those examples, and key rules and vocabulary for the example. The instructor will give clues as to when to write down given information. Definitely take notes when the instructor gives lists such as 1, 2, 3 or A, B, C, says this step is important, or says this problem will be on the test. Through careful listening, you will learn to recognize these clues.

Do you think you can solve word problems?



EXAMPLE 6 Apply Your Skill

Study Skill Tips

These appear at the beginning of each chapter to encourage

best study practices throughout

the course. A thought-provoking question related to the presented

students to think more about their

current study habits or their past

Study Skill Tip encourages

experiences with math.

Chapter Preview

This feature gives a brief

description of the material

presented in the chapter with student-friendly comments about

what to take note of in the chapter.

It takes a freight train 2 hours longer to travel 300 miles than it takes an express train to trave 280 miles. The rate of the express train is 20 miles per hour greater than the rate of the freight train. Find the times and rates of both trains.

Solution

Let t represent the time of the express train. Then t + 2 represents the time of the freight train. Let's record the information of this problem in a table.

Rate =

distance

express train to travel 195 miles.
The rate of the express train is
20 miles per hour greater than the
rate of the freight train. Find the
times and rates of both trains.

It takes a freight train 1 hour longer

Apply Your Skill Examples

These present real-life applications so that students can see the relevance of math in everyday life.

time 280 280 Express train t 300 Freight train 300 t + 2t + 2The fact that the rate of the express train is 20 miles per hour greater than the rate of the freight train can be a guideline.

Time

Rate of express Equals Rate of freight train plus 20

Distance



Chapter 4 Summary

OBJECTIVE	SUMMARY	EXAMPLE
Reduce rational numbers and rational expressions. (Section 4.1/Objectives 1 and 2)	Any number that can be written in the form $\frac{a}{b}$, where <i>a</i> and <i>b</i> are inte- gers and $b \neq 0$, is a rational number. A rational expression is defined as the indicated quotient of two polynomials. The fundamental principle of fractions, $\frac{a \cdot k}{b \cdot k} = \frac{a}{b}$, is used when reducing rational num- bers or rational expressions.	Simplify $\frac{x^2 - 2x}{x^2 + x}$ Solution $\frac{x^2 - 2x - 15}{x^2 + x - 6}$ $= \frac{(x + 3)(x)}{(x + 3)(x)}$ Sample Problem Simplify $\frac{x^2 - 2}{x^2 + 9}$

MPLE
lify $\frac{x^2 - 2x - 15}{x^2 + x - 6}$.
ion
2x - 15
+x-6
$(x+3)(x-5) = \frac{x-5}{2}$
(x+3)(x-2) - x - 2
ole Problem 1

Sample Problems

Found in the Chapter Summary, a Sample Problem has been added to each Objective to provide students with an opportunity to try a problem similar to the Example presented within the review for each Objective.

Copyright 2014 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s). Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.

x + 14

Continuing Features

Learning Objectives

Found at the beginning of each section, Learning Objectives are mapped to Problem Sets and to the Chapter Summary.

Examples

More than 700 worked-out Examples show students how to use and apply mathematical concepts. Every Example has a corresponding Classroom Example for the teacher to use.

Explanations

Annotations are in the Examples and provide further explanations of the material.

Classroom Examples

To provide the instructor with more resources, a Classroom Example is written for every Example. Instructors can present these in class or use them for student practice exercises. These Classroom Examples appear in the margin, to the left of the corresponding Example, in both the Annotated Instructor's Edition and in the Student Edition. Answers to the Classroom Examples appear only in the Annotated Instructor's Edition.

Concept Quiz

Every section has a Concept Quiz that immediately precedes the Problem Set. The questions are predominantly true/false questions that allow students to check their understanding of the mathematical concepts and definitions introduced in the section before moving on to their homework. Answers to the Concept Quiz are located at the end of the Problem Set.

Thoughts Into Words

Every Problem Set includes Thoughts Into Words problems, which give students an opportunity to express in written form their thoughts about various mathematical ideas.

Further Investigations

Many Problem Sets include Further Investigations, which allow students to pursue more complicated ideas. Many of these investigations lend themselves to small-group work.

Problem Sets

Problem Sets contain a wide variety of skill-development exercises. Because Problem Sets are a focal point of every revision, problems are added, deleted, and reworded based on users' suggestions.

Chapter Summary

The grid format of the Chapter Summary allows students to review material quickly and easily. Each row of the Chapter Summary includes a Learning Objective, a Summary of that Objective, and a worked-out Example for that Objective with a Sample Problem for students to work.

Chapter Review Problem Sets and Chapter Tests

Chapter Review Problem Sets and Chapter Tests appear at the end of every chapter. Chapter Review Problem Sets give students additional practice, and the Chapter Tests allow students to prepare and practice for "real" tests.

Cumulative Review Problem Sets

Cumulative Review Problem Sets occur about every two chapters. These help students retain skills that were introduced earlier in the text.

Answers

The Answer Section at the back of the text provides answers to the odd-numbered exercises in the Problem Sets and to all problems in the Chapter Review Problem Sets, Chapter Tests, Summary Sample Problems, Cumulative Review Problem Sets, and Appendix A.

⁻

Ancillaries

For the Student	For the Instructor
	Annotated Instructor's Edition (ISBN: 978-1-285-19573-5) The Annotated Instructor's Edition provides the complete student text with answers next to each respective exercise, along with answers to the Classroom Examples.
Student Solutions Manual (ISBN: 978-1-285-19701-2) Authors: Karen L. Schwitters, Laurel Fischer The Student Solutions Manual provides worked-out solu- tions to the odd-numbered problems in the textbook and all solutions for Chapter Reviews, Chapter Tests, and Cumula- tive Reviews.	Complete Solutions Manual (ISBN: 978-1-305-07462-0) Authors: Karen L. Schwitters, Laurel Fischer The Complete Solutions Manual provides worked-out solu- tions to all of the problems in the textbook.
Student Workbook (ISBN: 978-1-285-19705-0) Author: Maria H. Andersen, former math faculty at Musk- egon Community College and now working in the learning software industry The Student Workbook contains the entire student Assess- ments, Activities, and Worksheets from the Instructor's Re- source Binder for classroom discussions, in-class activities, and group work.	Instructor's Resource Binder (ISBN: 978-0-538-73675-6) Author: Maria H. Andersen, former math faculty at Musk- egon Community College and now working in the learning software industry Each topic in the main text is discussed in uniquely designed Teaching Guides, which contain instruction tips, examples, Activities, Worksheets, overheads, Assessments, and solutions to all Worksheets and Activities.
Enhanced WebAssign (Printed Access Card ISBN: 978-1-285-85770-1, Online Access Code ISBN: 978-1-285-85773-2) Enhanced WebAssign (assigned by the instructor) provides you with instant feedback on homework assignments. This online homework system is easy to use and includes helpful links to textbook sections, video examples, and problem-specific tutorials.	Enhanced WebAssign (Printed Access Card ISBN: 978-1-285-85770-1, Online Access Code ISBN: 978-1-285-85773-2) Exclusively from Cengage Learning Enhanced WebAssign combines the exceptional Mathe- matics content that you know and love with the immediate feedback, rich tutorial content, and interactive, fully cus- tomizable eBooks (YouBook), helping students to develop a deeper conceptual understanding of their subject matter. Online assignments can be built by selecting from thou- sands of text-specific problems or can be supplemented with problems from any Cengage Learning textbook.
	Instructor Companion Website Everything you need for your course in one place! This collection of book-specific lecture and class tools is avail- able online via www.cengage.com/login. Access and down- load PowerPoint presentations, images, instructor's manual, videos, and more.



Preface

Acknowledgments

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the following people who served as reviewers for this edition and for prior editions of the Kaufmann-Schwitters algebra series:

Yusuf Abdi Rutgers, the State University of New Jersey

Lynn Beckett-Lemus El Camino College

David Bernemann North Iowa Area Community College

Ramendra Bose University of Texas–Pan American

Lance Boyd Wallace State Community College

Jackie Bryant Baton Rouge Community College

Michael Carr Mott Community College

Gail Carter St. Petersburg College

Zhixiong Chen New Jersey City University

Mihran Dabagian Los Angeles Mission College

William Dabby Edison State College

Sheryl Dohm Chaminade University of Honolulu

Michael Engle Hudson Valley Community College

Stacey Ernstberger LaGrange College

Joseph Eyles Morehouse College

Amy Franklin Jacksonville State University

Jennie Gurley Wallace State Community College

Kim Gwydir University of Miami; Florida International University

Janet Hansen Dixie Junior College

M. Randall Holmes *Boise State University* Carolyn Horseman Polk Community College, Winter Haven

Betty Larson South Dakota State University

Greg McClanahan LaGrange College

Stacey Moore Wallace State Community College– Hanceville

Nam Nguyen University of Texas–Pan American

Leticia Oropesa University of Miami

Jeffrey Osikiewicz Kent State University

Tammy Ott Penn State University

Lawrence Pugliese Lackawanna College

Radha Sankaran Passaic County Community College

Chris Schultz Iowa State University

Joan Smeltzer Penn State University, York Campus

Brandon Smith Wallace State Community College– Hanceville

Ron Smith Edison State College

Kathy Spradlin Liberty University

Fernando Urgelles Chaminade University of Hawaii

Hien Van Eaton Liberty University

Patrick Webster El Camino College

Meredith Williams Campbell University

James Wood Tarleton State University



Rebecca Wulf Ivy Tech Community College, Lafeyette Brenda Zink Northeastern Junior College

Ahmed Zayed DePaul University

We would like to express our sincere gratitude to the staff of Cengage Learning, especially to Marc Bove, for his continuous cooperation and assistance throughout this project; and to Cheryll Linthicum, who carries out the many details of production. Finally, very special thanks are due to Rachel Schwitters, who spends numerous hours preparing art manuscripts.

> Jerome E. Kaufmann Karen L. Schwitters

Intermediate Algebra

TENTH EDITION



Copyright 2014 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s). Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.



Basic Concepts and Properties

- **1.0** Review of Fractions
- **1.1** Sets, Real Numbers, and Numerical Expressions
- **1.2** Operations with Real Numbers
- 1.3 Properties of Real Numbers and the Use of Exponents
- 1.4 Algebraic Expressions



ul Bradbury/0J0 Images/Getty

1

Study Skill Tip

There are many factors that affect success in a math course, such as the instructor, the textbook, your motivation, time of the day for class, etc. However, one of the most important factors for success is being placed in the right course for you. Can you imagine taking French II without having taken French I? What would be the likelihood of being successful? If at the beginning of this course, you think the material is way too difficult or way too easy, talk to your instructor regarding your placement in this course.

Two other factors that are extremely important for success in a math course are attending class regularly and doing the homework. If at all possible, don't ever miss class. However, take action right now and find a classmate whom you can contact in case you miss class. Get the names and college email addresses of several fellow students whom you could possibly contact to get the class notes in case you miss class.

Also, know the resources available if you need help with the homework. Become aware of your instructor's office hours and the location of any tutoring centers on campus. Also consider utilizing websites for additional help with your math course. Your instructor or fellow classmates can usually suggest appropriate websites for Intermediate Algebra.

Are you prepared enough to feel confident about your success in this algebra class?

"Before beginning, prepare carefully" MARCUS TULLIUS CICERO, ANCIENT ROMAN SCHOLAR

Chapter Preview

An Intermediate Algebra course assumes that you have basic arithmetic skills, including fractions and basic algebra skills. This chapter includes a review of fractions in Section 1.0. The section is written with diagnostic problems to help you determine whether you have mastery of the basic operations with fractions. I encourage you to try the four sets of mastery problems in Section 1.0 even if your instructor does not assign Section 1.0. The answers to the mastery sets are in the back of the book.

Algebra is often described as *generalized arithmetic*. That description does convey an important idea: A good understanding of arithmetic provides a sound basis for the study of algebra. In this chapter we use the concepts of *numerical expression* and *algebraic expression* to review some ideas from arithmetic and begin the transition to algebra. Be sure you thoroughly understand the basic concepts reviewed in this first chapter.

1.0 Review of Fractions

As with any math course, you need the prerequisite skills in order to be successful with the new material presented. Students enter into Intermediate Algebra with varying levels of math proficiency. Some students have a strong background and come into the course fully prepared. Other students may have a weak background or have not been enrolled in a math course for a while and have forgotten the prerequisite skills.

Throughout this section, problems will be presented for you to determine your mastery of some of the prerequisite arithmetic and algebra skills. There will be ten problems. Answers to these problems are in the back of the book. Use the following legend as a guide to direct your studying of the material immediately following the problems.

Number of problems correct	Prescription
10 or 9	You probably have mastery of this skill and can go on to the next topic without reviewing.
8 or 7	You have some basic mastery of this skill but do need to review. Read the material and do the corresponding problems in the prob- lem set to gain mastery of this skill.
6 or less	You have not mastered this skill. Read the material and do the cor- responding problems in the problem set to gain mastery of this skill. If after that you are still not proficient in this skill, ask your instructor for additional study materials.

Try the following problems to help determine your proficiency with prime numbers.

Mastery Set 1Prime NumbersFor Problems 1-4, label the number as prime or composite.1. 92. 303. 41For Problems 5, 7, factor the composite number into a produce

For Problems 5–7, factor the composite number into a product of prime numbers.

7. 210

5. 40 **6.** 84

Unless otherwise noted, all content on this page is © Cengage Learning.

4. 57

Copyright 2014 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s). Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.

3

For Problems 8–10, find the least common multiple of the given numbers.

8. 4 and 18 **9.** 6, 18, and 21 **10.** 4, 10, and 15

Prime Numbers

Because prime numbers and prime factorization play an important role in the operations with fractions, let's begin by considering two special kinds of whole numbers: prime numbers and composite numbers.

Definition 1.1

A **prime number** is a whole number greater than 1 that has no factors (divisors) other than itself and 1. Whole numbers greater than 1 that are not prime numbers are called **composite numbers**.

The prime numbers less than 50 are 2, 3, 5, 7, 11, 13, 17, 19, 23, 29, 31, 37, 41, 43, and 47. Note that each of these has no factors other than itself and 1. We can express every composite number as the indicated product of prime numbers. Consider the following examples:

 $4 = 2 \cdot 2$ $6 = 2 \cdot 3$ $8 = 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 2$ $10 = 2 \cdot 5$ $12 = 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 3$

In each case we express a composite number as the indicated product of prime numbers. This form is called the prime-factored form of the number. There are various procedures to find the prime factors of a given composite number. For our purposes, the simplest technique is to factor the given composite number into any two easily recognized factors and then continue to factor each of these until we obtain only prime factors. Consider these examples:

 $18 = 2 \cdot 9 = 2 \cdot 3 \cdot 3 \qquad 27 = 3 \cdot 9 = 3 \cdot 3 \cdot 3 \\ 24 = 4 \cdot 6 = 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 3 \qquad 150 = 10 \cdot 15 = 2 \cdot 5 \cdot 3 \cdot 5$

It does not matter which two factors we choose first. For example, we might start by expressing 18 as $3 \cdot 6$ and then factor 6 into $2 \cdot 3$, which produces a final result of $18 = 3 \cdot 2 \cdot 3$. Either way, 18 contains two prime factors of 3 and one prime factor of 2. The order in which we write the prime factors is not important.

Least Common Multiple

It is sometimes necessary to determine the smallest common nonzero multiple of two or more whole numbers. We call this nonzero number the **least common multiple**. In our work with fractions, there will be problems for which it will be necessary to find the least common multiple of some numbers—usually the denominators of fractions. So let's review the concepts of multiples. The set of all whole numbers that are multiples of 5 consists of 0, 5, 10, 15, 20, 25, and so on. In other words, 5 times each successive whole number $(5 \cdot 0 = 0, 5 \cdot 1 = 5, 5 \cdot 2 = 10, 5 \cdot 3 = 15, and so on)$ produces the multiples of 5. In a like manner, the set of multiples of 4 consists of 0, 4, 8, 12, 16, and so on. We can find the least common multiple of 5 and 4 by using a simple listing of the multiples of 5 and the multiples of 4.

Multiples of 5 are 0, 5, 10, 15, 20, 25, 30, 35, 40, 45, ...

Multiples of 4 are 0, 4, 8, 12, 16, 20, 24, 28, 32, 36, 40, 44, 48, ...

The nonzero numbers in common on the lists are 20 and 40. The least of these, 20, is the least common multiple. Stated another way, 20 is the smallest nonzero whole number that is divisible by both 4 and 5.

From your knowledge of arithmetic, you will often be able to determine the least common multiple by inspection. For instance, the least common multiple of 6 and 8 is 24.

Therefore, 24 is the smallest nonzero whole number that is divisible by both 6 and 8. If we cannot determine the least common multiple by inspection, then using the prime-factored form of composite numbers is helpful. The procedure is as follows.

- **Step 1** Express each number as a product of prime factors.
- **Step 2** The least common multiple contains each different prime factor. For each different factor, determine the most times each different factor is used in any of the factorizations. Those factors will then be used that number of times in the least common multiple. (For example, if the factor 2 occurs at most three times in any factorization, then the least common multiple will have the factor 2 used three times.)

The following examples illustrate this technique for finding the least common multiple of two or more numbers.

EXAMPLE 1	Find the least common	multiple of 24 and 36.
-----------	-----------------------	------------------------

Solution

Let's first express each number as a product of prime factors.

```
24 = 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 336 = 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 3 \cdot 3
```

There are two different factors, 2 and 3, in the prime-factored forms.

The prime factor 2 occurs the most times (three times) in the factorization of 24. Because the factorization of 24 contains three 2s, the least common multiple must have three 2s.

The prime factor 3 occurs the most times (two times) in the factorization of 36. Because the factorization of 36 contains two 3s, the least common multiple must have two 3s.

The least common multiple of 24 and 36 is therefore $2 \cdot 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 3 \cdot 3 = 72$.

Classroom Example

Classroom Example

and 30.

Find the least common multiple of 8

Find the least common multiple of 42 and 60.

Classroom Example

Find the least common multiple of 10, 15, and 24.

EXAMPLE 2

Find the least common multiple of 48 and 84.

Solution

 $48 = 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 3$ $84 = 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 3 \cdot 7$

There are three different factors, 2, 3, and 7, in the prime-factored forms.

The most number of times that 2 occurs is four times in the factored form of 48.

The factors 3 and 7 only occur once in each factored form, so we need one factor of each for the least common multiple.

The least common multiple of 48 and 84 is $2 \cdot 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 3 \cdot 7 = 336$.

EXAMPLE 3

Find the least common multiple of 12, 18, and 28.

Solution

 $28 = 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 7$ $18 = 2 \cdot 3 \cdot 3$ $12 = 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 3$

There are three different factors, 2, 3, and 7, in the prime-factored forms.

5

The most number of times that 2 occurs in any factored form is twice, so we need two factors of 2 in the least common multiple.

The most number of times that 3 occurs in any factored form is twice, so we need two factors of 3 in the least common multiple.

The factor, 7, only occurs once in the factored forms, so we need one factor of 7 for the least common multiple.

The least common multiple is $2 \cdot 2 \cdot 3 \cdot 3 \cdot 7 = 252$.

EXAMPLE 4 Find the least common multiple of 8 and 9.

Find the least common multiple of 6 and 25.

Classroom Example

Solution

 $9 = 3 \cdot 3$ $8 = 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 2$

There are two different factors, 2 and 3, in the prime-factored forms.

The most number of times that 2 occurs in any factored form is three times, so we need three factors of 2 in the least common multiple.

The most number of times that 3 occurs in any factored form is twice, so we need two factors of 3 in the least common multiple.

The least common multiple is $2 \cdot 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 3 \cdot 3 = 72$.

Try the following problems to help determine your proficiency with reducing, multiplying, and dividing fractions.

Mastery Set 2 Reducing, Multiplying, and Dividing Fractions

For Problems 1–3, reduce the fraction to lowest terms.

1. $\frac{10}{25}$ **2.** $\frac{12}{34}$ **3.** $\frac{14}{42}$

For Problems 4–7, multiply the fractions and express the answer in lowest terms.

. 1 2	_ 4 9	_ 12 1	_ 7 12
4. $-\cdot$ –	5. $-\cdot -$	6. $-\cdot$ -	7. $-\cdot$ –
5 7	3 24	59	2 7

For Problems 8–10, divide the fractions and express the answer in lowest terms.

8.
$$\frac{6}{5} \div \frac{2}{3}$$
 9. $\frac{21}{5} \div \frac{14}{15}$ **10.** $4 \div \frac{1}{5}$

Reducing Fractions

Before we proceed too far with operations on fractions, we need to learn about reducing fractions. The following property is applied throughout our work with fractions. We call this property the fundamental property of fractions.

Fundamental Property of Fractions

If b and k are nonzero integers, and a is any integer, then $\frac{a \cdot k}{b \cdot k} = \frac{a}{b}$.

Copyright 2014 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s). Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it

The fundamental property of fractions provides the basis for what is often called reducing fractions to lowest terms, or expressing fractions in simplest or reduced form. Let's apply the property to a few examples.

Classroom Example Reduce $\frac{25}{35}$ to lowest terms.	EXAMPLE 5 Solution	Reduce $\frac{12}{18}$ to lowest terms.
	$\frac{12}{18} = \frac{2 \cdot \cancel{6}}{3 \cdot \cancel{6}} = \frac{2}{3}$	A common factor of 6 has been divided out of both numerator and denominator
Classroom Example Change $\frac{18}{50}$ to simplest form.	EXAMPLE 6 Solution	Change $\frac{14}{35}$ to simplest form.
	$\frac{14}{35} = \frac{2 \cdot 7}{5 \cdot 7} = \frac{2}{5}$	A common factor of 7 has been divided out of both numerator and denominator
Classroom Example Reduce $\frac{24}{28}$.	EXAMPLE 7 Solution	Reduce $\frac{72}{90}$.
	$\frac{72}{90} = \frac{2 \cdot 2 \cdot 2 \cdot 3}{2 \cdot 3 \cdot 3 \cdot 5}$	$\frac{3}{5} = \frac{4}{5}$ The prime-factored forms of the numerator and denominator may be used to find common factors

Multiplying Fractions

We are now ready to consider multiplication problems with the understanding that the final answer should be expressed in reduced form. Study the following examples carefully; we use different methods to simplify the problems.

We can define the multiplication of fractions in common fractional form as follows.

Multiplying Fractions

If a, b, c, and d are integers, with b and d not equal to zero, then $\frac{a}{b} \cdot \frac{c}{d} = \frac{a \cdot c}{b \cdot d}$.

To multiply fractions in common fractional form, we simply multiply numerators and multiply denominators. The following examples illustrate the multiplying of fractions.

 $\frac{1}{3} \cdot \frac{2}{5} = \frac{1 \cdot 2}{3 \cdot 5} = \frac{2}{15}$ $\frac{3}{4} \cdot \frac{5}{7} = \frac{3 \cdot 5}{4 \cdot 7} = \frac{15}{28}$ $\frac{3}{5} \cdot \frac{5}{3} = \frac{15}{15} = 1$

The last of these examples is a very special case. If the product of two numbers is 1, then the numbers are said to be reciprocals of each other.

6

7

Classroom Example Multiply $\left(\frac{18}{5}\right)\left(\frac{15}{14}\right)$.

Multiply
$$\left(\frac{9}{4}\right)\left(\frac{14}{15}\right)$$

Solution

 $\left(\frac{9}{4}\right)\left(\frac{14}{15}\right) = \frac{\cancel{3} \cdot \cancel{3} \cdot \cancel{2} \cdot \cancel{7}}{\cancel{2} \cdot \cancel{2} \cdot \cancel{3} \cdot \cancel{5}} = \frac{21}{10}$ Factor each numerator and denominator and then reduce

Classroom Exa	mple	
Find the product of	f $\frac{4}{7}$ and	$\frac{21}{8}$

EXAMPLE 9

Find the product of
$$\frac{8}{9}$$
 and $\frac{18}{24}$

Solution

$$\frac{\frac{1}{8}}{\frac{9}{1}} \cdot \frac{\frac{2}{24}}{\frac{2}{3}} = \frac{2}{3}$$
 A common factor of 8 has been divided out of 8 and 24, and
a common factor of 9 has been divided out of 9 and 18

Dividing Fractions

The next example motivates a definition for division of rational numbers in fractional form:

$$\frac{\frac{3}{4}}{\frac{2}{3}} = \left(\frac{\frac{3}{4}}{\frac{2}{3}}\right) \left(\frac{\frac{3}{2}}{\frac{3}{2}}\right) = \frac{\left(\frac{3}{4}\right) \left(\frac{3}{2}\right)}{1} = \left(\frac{3}{4}\right) \left(\frac{3}{2}\right) = \frac{9}{8}$$

Note that
$$\begin{pmatrix} \frac{3}{2} \\ \frac{3}{2} \end{pmatrix}$$
 is a form of 1, and $\frac{3}{2}$ is the reciprocal of $\frac{2}{3}$. In other words, $\frac{3}{4}$ divided

by $\frac{2}{3}$ is equivalent to $\frac{2}{4}$ times $\frac{2}{2}$. The following definition for division now should seem reasonable.

Division of Fractions

If b, c, and d are nonzero integers, and a is any integer, then $\frac{a}{b} \div \frac{c}{d} = \frac{a}{b} \cdot \frac{d}{c}$.

Note that to divide $\frac{a}{b}$ by $\frac{c}{d}$, we multiply $\frac{a}{b}$ times the reciprocal of $\frac{c}{d}$, which is $\frac{d}{c}$. The next

examples demonstrate the important steps of a division problem.

$$\frac{2}{3} \div \frac{1}{2} = \frac{2}{3} \cdot \frac{2}{1} = \frac{4}{3}$$

$$\frac{5}{6} \div \frac{3}{4} = \frac{5}{6} \cdot \frac{4}{3} = \frac{5 \cdot 4}{6 \cdot 3} = \frac{5 \cdot 2 \cdot 2}{2 \cdot 3 \cdot 3} = \frac{10}{9}$$

$$\frac{6}{7} \div 2 = \frac{6}{7} \div \frac{2}{1} = \frac{\frac{3}{6}}{7} \cdot \frac{1}{2} = \frac{3}{7}$$

Copyright 2014 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s). Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it

Classroom Example Divide $\frac{2}{5} \div \frac{2}{3}$.

Classroom Example

Divide $\frac{21}{4} \div 3$.

EXAMPLE 10Divide $\frac{4}{9} \div \frac{3}{2}$.Solution $\frac{4}{9} \div \frac{3}{2} = \frac{4}{9} \cdot \frac{2}{3} = \frac{8}{27}$ Multiply by the reciprocal of $\frac{3}{2}$ EXAMPLE 11Divide $\frac{7}{2} \div 3$.Solution $\frac{7}{2} \div 3 = \frac{7}{2} \div \frac{3}{1}$ Rewrite 3 as $\frac{3}{1}$ $= \frac{7}{2} \cdot \frac{1}{3} = \frac{7}{6}$ Multiply by $\frac{1}{3}$, the reciprocal of $\frac{3}{1}$

Try the following problems to help determine your proficiency with addition and subtraction of fractions.

Mastery Set 3 Adding and Subtracting Fractions

For Problems 1–5, perform the addition. Express the answer in lowest terms.

1 1 5	3^{-3} 1^{-1}	3^{3} 2^{2}	7 3	5 11 13
1. $\frac{-}{8} + \frac{-}{8}$	$\frac{2}{4} + \frac{-}{8}$	5. $\frac{-}{5} + \frac{-}{3}$	4. $\frac{12}{12} + \frac{1}{8}$	5. $\frac{1}{60} + \frac{1}{24}$

For Problems 6–9, perform the subtraction. Express the answer in lowest terms.

6.	6	2	7 1	1	1	o 7		4	7	5
	7	7	$1. \frac{12}{12}$	2	4	6. $\frac{-}{8}$	5	9.	18	24

10. If Jessica ate $\frac{3}{8}$ of a pepperoni pizza and $\frac{1}{4}$ of a cheese pizza, what was her total portion of pizza eaten?

Adding and Subtracting Fractions

Suppose that it is one-fifth of a mile between your dorm and the union and two-fifths of a mile between the union and the library along a straight line, as indicated in Figure 1.1. The total distance between your dorm and the library is three-fifths of a mile, and we write $\frac{1}{5} + \frac{2}{5} = \frac{3}{5}$.



Figure 1.1

A pizza is cut into seven equal pieces and you eat two of the pieces (see Figure 1.2). How much of the pizza remains? We represent the whole pizza by $\frac{7}{7}$ and conclude that $\frac{7}{7} - \frac{2}{7} = \frac{5}{7}$ of the pizza remains.

9



Figure 1.2

These examples motivate the following definition for addition and subtraction of rational numbers in $\frac{a}{b}$ form.

Addition and Subtraction of Fractions							
If a , b , and c are integers, and b is not zero, then							
$\frac{a}{b} + \frac{c}{b} = \frac{a+c}{b}$	Addition						
$\frac{a}{b} - \frac{c}{b} = \frac{a-c}{b}$	Subtraction						

We say that fractions with common denominators can be added or subtracted by adding or subtracting the numerators and placing the results over the common denominator. Consider the following examples:

$$\frac{3}{7} + \frac{2}{7} = \frac{3+2}{7} = \frac{5}{7}$$

$$\frac{7}{8} - \frac{2}{8} = \frac{7-2}{8} = \frac{5}{8}$$

$$\frac{5}{6} - \frac{1}{6} = \frac{5-1}{6} = \frac{4}{6} = \frac{2}{3}$$
We agree to reduce the final answer

How do we add or subtract if the fractions do not have a common denominator? We use the fundamental principle of fractions, $\frac{a \cdot k}{b \cdot k} = \frac{a}{b}$, to get equivalent fractions that have a common denominator. **Equivalent fractions** are fractions that name the same number. Consider the next example, which shows the details.

EXAMPLE 12	Add $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{2}{2}$		
	4 5		
Solution			
$\frac{1}{4} = \frac{1 \cdot 5}{4 \cdot 5} = \frac{5}{20}$	$\frac{1}{4}$ and $\frac{5}{20}$ are equivalent fractions		
$\frac{2}{5} = \frac{2 \cdot 4}{5 \cdot 4} = \frac{8}{20}$	$\frac{2}{5}$ and $\frac{8}{20}$ are equivalent fractions		
$\frac{5}{20} + \frac{8}{20} = \frac{13}{20}$			

Note that in Example 12 we chose 20 as the common denominator, and 20 is the least common multiple of the original denominators 4 and 5. (Recall that the least common

Classroom Example Add $\frac{2}{3} + \frac{4}{7}$.

Unless otherwise noted, all content on this page is © Cengage Learning.

Copyright 2014 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s). Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.